
Sussex County Board of Supervisors Meeting 
Thursday, March 16, 2017 – 6 pm 

General District Courtroom – Sussex Judicial Center 
15098 Courthouse Road, Sussex VA 23884 

==================================================================== 
1. Commencement 
1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum 
1.02 The Invocation 
1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance 
1.04 Agenda Amendment(s) 
1.05 Approval of Regular Agenda 
 
2. Approval of Consent Agenda 
2.01 Minutes of February 16, 2017 meeting 
2.02 Approval of Warrants and Vouchers 
2.03 Accept and Appropriate Funds from RRS Food Service:  $3,030.97 Sheriff’s Department 
2.04 Accept and Appropriate Funds from VACORP:  $15.00 Finance Department 
 
3. Recognitions/Awards  
3.01 Resolution:  Sussex Central High School Football Team 
  
4. Public Hearing  
4.01 Resolution Authorizing the Preparation and Filing of an Application for Community 

Improvement Grant Funds through the Virginia Small Cities Community Development 
Block Grant Program for the Pocahontas Neighborhood in the Town of Wakefield 

 Public Comment 
 Board Comment 
4.02 Action on Public Hearing Item 
 
5. Appointments 
5.01 Sussex Service Authority Appointment Update  
 
6. Action Items 
6.01 Release of Liability for Damage (Prince George Electric Cooperative) 
6.02 Request for Budget Transfer from Selective Enforcement to SPOT - $25,000.00   
6.03 Sheriff’s Department Holiday Leave 
6.04 Adoption of Vision, Mission and Strategic Initiatives 
 
7. Report of Departments 
7.01 Atlantic Waste Disposal Update, Jason Williams  
7.02 Budget and CIP Presentation – for information only 
 (Presentation will be given by Interim County Administrator) 
7.03 Animal Services/Public Safety Report – for information only 
7.04 Treasurer’s Report – for information only 
7.05 Housing Department Report – for information only 
 



8. Citizens Comments (8 pm) 
 
9. Unfinished Business - none 
 
10. New Business - none 
 
11. Board Members Comments 
11.01 Blackwater District 
11.02 Courthouse District 
11.03 Henry District 
11.04 Stony Creek District 
11.05 Wakefield District 
11.06 Waverly District 
 
12. Closed Session 
12.01 Convene to Closed Session 

a. Consultation with legal counsel and briefings by staff members or consultants 
pertaining to actual or probable litigation, applicable Code Section 2.2-3711(A)(7) 

b. Discussion or consideration of the disposition of publicly held real property, where 
discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or 
negotiating strategy of the public body, applicable Code Section 2.2-3711(A)3 

c. Personnel Matters, discussion of consideration of prospective candidates for 
employment; applicable Code Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) 

12.02 Reconvene to Open Session 
12.03 Certification 
12.04 Action Resulting from Closed Session (if any) 
 
13. Adjournment 
13.01 Recess/Adjournment 
13.02 Next Regular Meeting, Thursday, April 19, 2017 @ 6 pm 
  
 



1 | Page – Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

At a Regular Meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

Held in the General District Courtroom on 

Thursday, February 16, 2017 at 6 pm 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT 

Keith C. Blowe 

C. Eric Fly, Sr.

Alfred G. Futrell

Susan B. Seward

John A. Stringfield

Rufus E. Tyler, Sr.

STAFF PRESENT: 

Vandy V. Jones, III, Interim County Administrator 

Mark Flynn, County Attorney 

Millard P. Stith, Independent Consultant 

John P. Woodley, County Attorney 

Ellen G. Boone, Commissioner of the Revenue 

Shilton R. Butts, Assistant to the County Administrator/Deputy Clerk to the Board 

Deste J. Cox, Deputy Treasurer 

Brenda H. Drew, Housing Coordinator 

William Jenkins, General Registrar 

Kelly W. Moore, Accounts Payable Clerk 

Patrick Plourde , Director of Social Services 

Dean Simmons, Building Official 

Matthew Venable, Director of Environmental Inspections 

1. Commencement

1.01 Call to Order/Determine Quorum 

The February 16, 2017 meeting of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors was called to 

order by Chairman Seward. 

1.02 The Invocation 

The Invocation was offered by Supervisor Tyler. 

1.03 The Pledge of Allegiance 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all. 

1.04  Agenda Amendments 

2.01

sricks
Highlight



  

2 | Page – Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 

The following amendments were requested:  under Item 6. Action Items, add as item 6.05 

Annual Report on Comprehensive Plan; and, as item 6.06 Appropriate $7,081.66 to Social 

Services for Purchase of a Van. 

 

1.05   Approval of Regular Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the 

February 16, 2017 regular agenda, inclusive of adding under Item 6. Action Items as Item 

6.05 Annual Report on Comprehensive Plan; and, as Item 6.06 Appropriate $7,081.66 to 

Social Services for Purchase of a Van. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

Absent during vote:  Supervisor Stringfield 

 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR FUTRELL and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the 

consent agenda inclusive of the following: (a) Minutes of January 19, 2017 regular 

meetings; (b) Approval of Warrants and Vouchers; (c) Accept and Appropriate Funds for 

Animal Control - $69.95; and (d) Accept and Appropriate Funds for Administration - 

$222.23. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

Absent during vote:  Supervisor Stringfield 

 

3. Recognitions/Awards 

 

3.01 Resolution:  Sussex Central High School Football Team 

 

Interim County Administrator Jones advised the Board of the accomplishments of the 

Sussex Central High School Varsity Football Team.  A resolution will be drafted to be 

adopted and presented at its regular March 2017 meeting recognizing the team for finishing 

the year as the 1A State Runner-Up. 

 

3.02 Introduction of New Employees 

 

Interim County Administrator Jones introduced and welcomed Mr. Millard “Pete” Stith 

and Mr. Dean Simmons.   

 

Mr. Stith is a long time Sussex resident who has worked with the County previously.  Mr. 

Stith has been hired as an Independent Consultant who will be working with Interim 

County Administrator Jones to concentrate on priorities the Board set forth during the 

Board’s retreat in October. 

 

Mr. Stith gave a brief introduction and thanked the Board. 



  

3 | Page – Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 

 

Mr. Dean Simmons was introduced as the County’s new Building Official.  Mr. Simmons 

gave a brief introduction and thanked the Board. 

 

4. Public Hearing – none  

 

Supervisor Stringfield entered at 6:15 p.m.  

 

5. Appointments 

 

5.01 Appointment to the Blackwater Regional Library Board of Trustees 

 

Interim County Administrator Jones advised the Board that County Administration 

received notification from Blackwater Regional Library Director, Ms. Jenny Bailey, that 

Ms. Judy Marks’ term on the library’s Board of Trustees as the Sussex County member 

will expire June 30, 2017.  Staff contacted Ms. Marks.  She does not wish to be 

reappointed. 

 

Staff was advised that in selecting a new member, the Board should inform the candidate 

that the Board of Trustees meets nine (9) times a year on the third Wednesday of each 

month at 3:00 p.m. The meetings usually last approximately two (2) hours.  The location 

of the meetings rotates around the nine (9) branches.  

 

The new member will also be asked to serve on a committee which will meet outside the 

normal board meeting to discuss business matters.  Serving on this committee could mean 

an additional one (1) or two (2) hours per month. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby appoints Ms. Jessica 

Moore, Post Office Box 92, Wakefield, Virginia 23888, to the Blackwater Regional 

Library Board of Trustees with a term beginning July 1, 2017 and expiring June 30, 2021. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

5.02 Appointment to Sussex Service Authority Board of Directors 

 

Interim County Administrator Jones stated the Board was notified at the January 19, 2017 

meeting, that the At-Large Alternate position on the Sussex Service Authority Board of 

Directors was vacant.  This position runs concurrent with the At-Large position and will 

expire December 31, 2019.  The appointment is not district specific; however, elected 

officials cannot serve in this capacity. 

 

Supervisor Blowe nominated Mr. Ashton Bryant of Stony Creek, Virginia to serve in the 

position.  Supervisor Futrell nominated Mr. Franklin Cox of Waverly, Virginia. 

 



  

4 | Page – Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 

There was a roll call for the vote for Mr. Ashton Bryant which resulted in a tie vote with 

Supervisors Blowe, Stringfield, and Tyler voting aye; and, Supervisors Fly, Futrell, and 

Seward voting nay. 

 

Initially it was suggested to have Mr. Collins, the tiebreaker, to vote; however, a substitute 

motion was offered to table this item to have the two (2) candidates to submit resumes to 

the Board. 

 

ON MOTION SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby tables the 

appointment to the Sussex Service Authority Board of Directors until the March 16, 2017 

regular Board meeting to allow the submittal of resumes for the nominated candidates. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

5.03 Appointment to the Industrial Development Authority (IDA) Board  

 

Interim County Administrator Jones reported that County Administration received Mr. 

Eugene Brittle’s letter of resignation from the Industrial Development Authority Board of 

Directors.  Mr. Brittle’s term is due to expire May 15, 2019. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FUTRELL, seconded by SUPERVISOR 

STRINGFIELD and carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

hereby appoints Ms. Ann Dix, Post Office Box 326, Jarratt, VA 23867 to the Industrial 

Development Board of Directors to fill the unexpired term of Mr. Eugene Brittle due to 

expire May 15, 2019. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

6. Action Items 

 

6.01 510nano Leases for Solar Farm 

 

Interim County Administrator Jones reported that the Board of Supervisors held a public 

hearing on December 15, 2016 regarding 510nano interest in leasing two (2) of the 

County’s properties—the former Gin Hill (located on Brigg’s Road and designated as Tax 

Parcel No. 106-A-12) and the former Robinson Road Landfill (located on Robinson Road 

and designated as Tax Parcel Nos. 91-A-12 and 91-A-11A) for a solar farm.  He stated that 

the County Attorneys were directed to continue negotiations on the leases with Dr. Parker 

of 510nano. 

 

County Attorney Woodley reviewed familiarities of the leases for the former Gin Hill and 

the former Robinson Road Landfills.  County Attorney Woodley noted that the contracts 

were identical other than the identification of the property.  It was also noted that a portion 

of the former Gin Hill landfill property will be leased containing up to 50 total acres; the 

former Robinson Road will be leased containing up to 100 total acres. County Attorney 

Woodley advised that the contracts had a provision that the actual acreage being leased 



  

5 | Page – Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 

will be determined at the time of the “as-built” diagrams or the facilities being in place.  

The rate of rent is $700 USD per installed acre with an increase of 2.5% of the contract 

every five (5) years.   County Attorney Woodley advised that there are two (2) terms of the 

contract.  The initial term that leads up to the zoning of the project and the power purchase 

agreement by the lessee. Once the power is sold, there is a potential for a ten (10) year 

extension.  The lessee commits to removing the facility from the County’s property in 120 

days from the end of the lease and will provide third party financial assurances.  The lessee 

agrees to reimburse the County for its costs in obtaining any necessary permits for any 

modifications from the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality. 

 

A copy of the leases were included in the Board packet.  

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD 

and carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes 

the interim county administrator to execute site leases for the Gin Hill Solar, LLC (located 

on Brigg’s Road and designated as Tax Parcel No. 106-A-21) and Sussex Solar, LLC 

(located on Robinson Road and designated as Tax Parcel Nos. 91-A-12 and 91-A-11A.) 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

6.02 Blackwater Regional Library 

 

Interim County Administrator Jones reported that this was tabled from the January 19, 2017 

Board meeting.  Blackwater Regional Library requested an additional $865.45 to cover 

hours that there was no funding to pay for the next five (5), now four (4) months—until 

June 30, 2017. 

 

Interim County Administrator Jones stated that there was also a draft letter prepared to send 

to Ms. Jenny Bailey, Blackwater Regional Library Director, in regards to items the Board 

would like to be addressed. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR TYLER and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves 

appropriating $865.45 to the Blackwater Regional Library to cover the hours with no 

funding until June 30, 2017. 

Voting aye:  Supervisor Blowe 

Voting nay:  Supervisors Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

 

Motion failed. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR FUTRELL and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves 

sending the draft letter in regards to items the Board would like to be addressed to Ms. 

Jenny Bailey, Blackwater Regional Library Director. 

Voting aye:  Supervisor Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 



  

6 | Page – Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 

6.03 Contract for Sale of Stony Creek Town Park 

 

At the January 19, 2017 Board meeting, the Stony Creek Town Council offered $5,000.00 

for the purchase of the Town park.  Staff was instructed to draft a deed with restrictions 

for consideration of the sale of the Town of Stony Creek Park. 

 

County Attorney Woodley reviewed the draft contract for the sale of the Stony Creek 

Town Park.  The contract contained the restrictions of the conveyance of the property.  

County Attorney Woodley advised that upon approval of the contract for the sale of the 

Stony Creek Town Park, a deed will be drafted after receiving the legal description of the 

property. 

 

A draft copy of the contract for Sale of the Town of Stony Creek Park was provided to the 

Board members.  A copy of the letter from Davis Oil, Inc. to Ms. Susan Seward, Chair, 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors, noting that Davis Oil, Inc. will donate $30,000.00 to 

the building of the new Public Safety Building, along with other assistance to the park 

program was included in the Board packet. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR FLY, seconded by SUPERVISOR FUTRELL and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves the 

interim county administrator to execute the contract for the sale of the Town Stony Creek 

Park in the amount of $5,000.00; and, 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby authorizes the interim 

county administrator to execute a deed for the sale of the Stony Creek Town Park. 

Voting aye:  Supervisor Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

6.04  County Attorney Contract Renewal 

 

County Administrator Jones reported that Woodley & Flynn’s contract to serve as the 

county attorneys ends March 31, 2017.  It is proposed that the contract be extended 

through June 30, 2018, with the fiscal 2018 section of the work subject to appropriation 

in the County’s 2018 budget. 

 

The monthly cost of the contract would remain the current contract price of $6,250.00 per 

month. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves 

Woodley & Flynn’s contract to be extended through June 30, 2018 with the fiscal 2018 

section of the work subject to appropriation in the County’s 2018 budget in which the 

monthly cost of the contract would remain the current contract price of $6,250.00 per 

month. 

Voting aye:  Supervisor Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 



  

7 | Page – Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 

6.05 Annual Report on Comprehensive Plan 

 

Supervisor Blowe reviewed the Virginia State Code 15.2-2239, The Capital Improvement 

Program he provided to the Board members.  Supervisor Blowe stated that the Planning 

Commission should provide an annual update of the Comprehensive Plan to the Board of 

Supervisors.  He also stated that it is recommended by Code within the update, the Planning 

Commission should provide an updated Capital Improvement Program (CIP) prioritized 

list of capital improvement projects for the Board’s consideration during the planning and 

budgeting process.  Supervisor Blowe requested that the Board direct the Planning 

Commission to provide the Board with an annual update report on the Comprehensive Plan 

to include a Capital Improvement Program (CIP) with priorities.  This update and/or 

recommendation should be provided in a timeframe in which it can be included during the 

planning and budgeting process. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR STRINGFIELD 

and carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby directs the 

Planning Commission to provide the Board of Supervisors an annual report update on the 

Comprehensive Plan to include a Capital Improvement Program (CIP) with priorities.  

Voting aye:  Supervisor Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

6.06 Appropriation to Social Services for Purchase of Van - $7,081.66 

 

Interim County Administrator Jones stated that Sussex Social Services Department has 

been notified by the Crater District Area Agency on Aging that Crater has received a grant 

approval from the Virginia Department of Rail and Public Transportation to purchase a 

van.  The van will be specifically used to transport seniors and persons with disabilities.  

The cost of the van is approximately $35,000.00.  The grant will cover the cost of the van 

except for twenty percent (20%).  In order for Sussex Social Services Department to avail 

themselves for the purchase of the van, the match has to be paid in the amount $7,081.66.  

However, Sussex Social Services Department does not have the funds available and is 

requesting an appropriation. 

 

Mr. Plourde, the Director of Social Services, added that the van has a ramp for handicap 

citizens to have access. 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER, seconded by SUPERVISOR FUTRELL and 

carried:  RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves and 

appropriates $7,081.66 to Sussex Social Services Department for the purchase of van; and 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED that the funds are to be taken from the contingency fund. 

Voting aye:  Supervisor Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

7. Reports of Departments/Agencies  

 



  

8 | Page – Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 

7.01 Atlantic Waste Disposal Update, Joe Cox, Atlantic Waste Disposal, Inc. Site 

Engineer 

 

Mr. Joe Cox, Atlantic Waste Disposal, Inc. Site Engineer, provided a brief report of 

Atlantic Waste Disposal, Inc.   

 

Mr. Cox stated that the Phase IV capping project is approximately 30-40 acres.  It is 

believed that the odor is coming from the Phase IV area which was previously capped with 

clay in 2016.  He stated that the primary goal is to eliminate all site odors.  A plan has been 

developed to install synthetic caps in the Phase IV area.  They have been working on this 

goal since mid-January 2017.  In addition to the cap, they began to install 27 additional 

wells in the Phases III and IV areas. 

 

Phase III capping project design, which is approximately 31 acres, is anticipated to start 

mid-2017.  Some preliminary earthwork has already been started in the current month.  

Atlantic Waste will also be doing smaller capping projects throughout the year. 

 

The Waste Water Treatment Plant is still expected to be completed in the second quarter 

of 2017.  Leachate trucking hauling offsite has been reduced by approximately one-third. 

 

Mr. Cox stated that upgrades were installed in the Homeville, Wakefield, Courthouse and 

Waverly convenience centers.  

 

It was requested to have a report on the status of the cameras at the Henry Convenience 

Center at the March 16, 2017 Board meeting. 

 

7.02 Animal Services/Public Safety Report – included in Board packet 

 

7.03 Treasurer’s Report – included in Board packet 

 

7.04 Community Development Report – included in Board packet 

 

7.05 Housing Department Report – included in Board packet 

 

7.06 Sussex Service Authority Financial Statements – included in Board packet  

 

7.07 Mission Ministries Disaster Relief Fund Report – included in Board packet 

 

7.08 County Administrator’s County Property List Update – included in Board packet 

 

Supervisor Blowe inquired as to why the Henry Road property was on the County’s list of 

properties to be sold.  Interim County Administrator Jones stated that the list was 

previously created as properties that were not being used.  Supervisor Tyler requested that 

the property not be sold because of its potential due to its location. 

  

8. Citizens’ Comments (7:17 pm) 

 



  

9 | Page – Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 

Comments were heard from: 

 

 Mayor Frank Jackson (Stony Creek District) – Appreciation for purchase of Stony 

Creek Town Park. 

 Jessica Moore (President, Wakefield Library) – Thanked Board for appointment to 

Blackwater Regional Library Board of Trustees; Funding, Operation and Hours for 

Wakefield Library. 

 Clyde Johnson (Waverly) – Odors at landfill; thanked Board for efforts with the 

landfill. 

 Lawrence Coleman (Stony Creek District) – Route 619 (2-1/2 mile strip of road—

Concord Church to the one-lane bridge) lower speed limit; precautionary signs 

 

9. Unfinished Business – none 

 

10. New Business – none  

 

11. Board Member Comments 

 

11.01 Blackwater District – none 

 

11.02 Courthouse District – Replace ease on Old Historical Courthouse 

 

11.03 Henry District – Delegate Kilgore modified Broadband Bill; Delegate Tyler carried 

Dog situation resolved (General Assembly) 

 

11.04 Stony Creek District – Announced Town Hall Meeting – 2/25 at Fort Grove United 

Methodist Church from 10:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon. 

 

11.05 Wakefield District – Thanked Administration staff for finishing boarding up 

Chambliss Elementary School; thanked VDOT for cleaning ditches. 

 

11.06 Waverly District – none 

 

12. Closed Session 

 

12.01 Convene into Closed Session 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby enters Closed Session 

for (1) personnel matters, pursuant to Code Section 2.2-3711(A)1 regarding Animal 

Control and Finance Director; (2) disposition of real property, pursuant to Code Section 

2.2-3711(A)3, regarding Waste Management; and, (3) the award of a public contract, 

pursuant to Code Section 2.2-3711(A)29, regarding the County towers 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

Absent during vote:  Supervisor Stringfield 

 



  

10 | Page – Minutes of the February 16, 2017 Board of Supervisors Meeting 

 

12.02 Reconvene to Open Session 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR TYLER seconded by SUPERVISOR FUTRELL and 

carried: RESOLVED that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby returns to Open 

Session. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

12.03 Certification  

 

By roll call the Sussex County Board of Supervisors hereby approves adoption of 

resolution for certification, to-wit: 

 

WHEREAS, that the Sussex County Board of Supervisors convened a Closed Meeting on 

this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote in accordance with the provisions of the 

Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, requires a certification 

by the Board that such Closed Meeting was conducted inconformity with Virginia law. 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby certifies 

that, to the best of each member’s knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully 

exempted from Open Meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the Closed 

Meeting to which this certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business 

matters as were identified in the motion convening the Closed Meeting were heard 

discussed or considered. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none  

 

12.04 Action Resulting from Closed Session  

 

No action taken on Closed Session items. 

 

13. Recess/Adjournment 

 

13.01 Adjournment 

 

ON MOTION OF SUPERVISOR BLOWE, seconded by SUPERVISOR FLY and carried:  

RESOLVED that the February 16, 2017 meeting of the Sussex County Board of 

Supervisors adjourned at 9:10 p.m. 

Voting aye:  Supervisors Blowe, Fly, Futrell, Seward, Stringfield, Tyler 

Voting nay:  none 

 

13.02 Next Meeting 

 

The next Board of Supervisors meeting will be Thursday, March 16, 2017 at 6 p.m. in the 

General District Courtroom. 



TOTAL ALL WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $669,148.24

TOTAL ALL VOID CHECKS FOR APPROVAL $0.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE WARRANTS: CHECK NO. AMOUNTS PROCESS DATE

FOR MONTH OF  FEBRUARY 2017 206099-206170 182,085.59$   RUN DATE 2/3/17

206182-206227 116,551.36$   RUN DATE 2/10/17

206228-206234 210.00$  RUN DATE 2/16/17

206235-206302 234,447.37$   RUN DATE 2/17/17

206314-206338 43,353.22$  RUN DATE 2/28/17

Total Regular Warrants $576,647.54

PAY. DEDUCTION WARRANTS: 206171-206181 45,911.85$  RUN DATE 2/16/17

206303-206313 46,588.85$  RUN DATE 2/28/17

Total Deduction Warrants: $92,500.70

TOTAL VOUCHERS & WARRANTS FOR APPROVAL $669,148.24

VOID CHECKS See attached -$  

March 16, 2017
      WARRANTS & VOUCHERS SUMMARY

2.02

sricks
Highlight



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
CHECKS 

 

















































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

PAYROLL 
DEDUCTION 

CHECKS 







Board of Supervisors 

Keith C. Blowe, Chairman 
Susan B. Seward, Vice Chairman 
C. Eric Fly, Sr. 
Alfred G. Futrell 
John A. Stringfield
Rufus E. Tyler 

Post Office Box 1397 
20135 Princeton Road 
Sussex, Virginia 23884 

   Deborah A. Davis 
  County Administrator 

ddavis@sussexcountyva.gov  

Telephone: (434) 246-1000 
Facsimile: (434) 246-6013 
www.sussexcountyva.gov 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

March 16, 2017 

Item:  March 16, 2017 

Requested by:   Kelly Moore, Accounts Payable 

Summary: The Finance Department is requesting that the Board of Supervisors 
appropriate the following funds received from RRS Foodservice (check 
attached) to the appropriate line item: 

$3,030.97 for overpayment of Inv#1911450 to line item 51500-1246-551-510 

Recommendation:  MOTION Accept and appropriate the funds in the amount of $3,030.97 from 
RRS Foodservice. 

Consent Agenda - Page 1

2.03

mailto:ddavis@sussexcountyva.gov
http://www.sussexcountyva.gov/
sricks
Highlight



To Whom It May Concern: 

Sussex County Jail 

P. 0. Box 1326

Sussex. Virginia 23884 

January 30, 2017 

r: -

We received a refund check from Richmond Restaurant Service in the amount of $3030.97, for a 

duplicate payment of invoice #1911450, which was a food order for the jail kitchen. 

We are requesting that this check be credited back towards our line item #1246 (Food Supplies). Our bill 

coding numbers are 51500-1246-551510. 

Thank you for your assistance. 

James J Shanko 

RECORDS/ CORIS / JAIL BILLING 

Attc1chment: check 

cc: file 

Consent Agenda - Page 2



Fomilyrowned a1nce 1939 • A division of J L Culpeppor & Co 

201 Haley Road • Ashland, VA 23005 

TOTALS 

- · -- ---

3,030.97 

THREE THOUSAND THIRTY AND 

PAY 

TOTHE 

ORDER 

OF 

SUSSEX CO SHERIFF DEPT. 

P.O. BOX 1326 

SUSSEX VA 23884 

11• • b 3 L b • 11• I: 0 s L L, 0 L, 2 � 0 I: 0 0 D D � 5 3 5 q O ? 2 q 11• 

.00 3,030.97 

BB&T 
Branch Banking and Trust Company 

68-426 
-51_4_ 

DATE @3M31ifi•M 
01202017 1631El 

Consent Agenda - Page 3



Board of Supervisors 

Keith C. Blowe, Chairman 
Susan B. Seward, Vice Chairman 
C. Eric Fly, Sr. 
Alfred G. Futrell 
John A. Stringfield
Rufus E. Tyler 

Post Office Box 1397 
20135 Princeton Road 
Sussex, Virginia 23884 

   Deborah A. Davis 
  County Administrator 

ddavis@sussexcountyva.gov  

Telephone: (434) 246-1000 
Facsimile: (434) 246-6013 
www.sussexcountyva.gov 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 

March 16, 2017 

Item:  March 16, 2017 

Requested by:   Kelly Moore, Accounts Payable 

Summary: The Finance Department is requesting that the Board of Supervisors restore 
the following funds received from VACORP (check attached) to the 
appropriate line item: 

$15.00 for the repair of VIN#7542 to line item 21600-1265-262-210 

Recommendation:  MOTION Accept and appropriate the funds in the amount of $15.00 from 
VACORP. 

Consent Agenda - Page 4

2.04

mailto:ddavis@sussexcountyva.gov
http://www.sussexcountyva.gov/
sricks
Highlight



Consent Agenda - Page 5



Consent Agenda - Page 6



BOARD ACTION FORM 
 
Agenda Item:   Recognition #3.01 
 
Subject:   Resolution Recognition Sussex Central High School Varsity Football Team 
 
Board Meeting Date:  March 16, 2017    
   
============================================================================== 
Summary:   Sussex Central High School (SCHS) Varsity Football Team had outstanding season in 2016.  
They finished the regular season with 10-0 record and made it to the State Championship finishing the 
year as the 1A State Runner-Up. 
 
Staff has drafted a resolution for approval to be presented to the team and coaching staff. 
 
Recommendation: That the Board of Supervisors adopts the resolution and present to Sussex 
Central High School Team and Staff 
 
Attachments (if any):     A copy of the resolution to SCHS Varsity Football Team 
 
============================================================================== 

 

ACTION:   That the Board of Supervisors adopt the resolution and present to Sussex Central 
High School Team and Staff 
 
MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________     
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Member Aye Nay    Member Aye Nay 
 
Blowe  ___ ___    Seward ___ ___ 
 
Fly  ___ ___    Stringfield ___ ___ 
 
Futrell  ___ ___    Tyler  ___ ___ 

sricks
Highlight



RESOLUTION 
SUSSEX CENTRAL HIGH SCHOOL 

VARSITY FOOTBALL TEAM 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Sussex County Board of Supervisors commends the Sussex Central High School 
Varsity Football Team (“Tigers”) for making the County proud; and 
 
WHEREAS, During the 2016 season, the Sussex Central High School Varsity Football Team 
finished their regular season with a perfect 10-0 record; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Tigers, exhibited teamwork and determination in leading the team to a 
memorable season, with contributions that led the team to the VHSL 1A State Championship in 
Salem, Virginia; and  
 
WHEREAS, The Tigers football team finished the year as the VHSL 1A State Runner-Up with 
an outstanding 13-1 record. 
 
WHEREAS, Under the dedicated direction of Head Coach Curtis Jefferson, Principal Alvina 
Matthews, coaching staff and trainers, set a standard of achievement for themselves and for others 
to follow; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Sussex County Board of Supervisors, 
hereby recognizes and honors the Sussex Central High School Varsity Football Team for their 
outstanding achievements during the 2016 season; and 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Board of Supervisors congratulates the Sussex Central High 
School Varsity Football Team for a job well done, their impressive accomplishments, and being a 
source of pride for its citizens. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, That this resolution be presented to representatives of the Sussex 
Central High School Varsity Football Team as evidence of the sincere sentiments of this Board. 
 
Adopted by the Board of Supervisors on the 16th day of March, 2017. 
 
 
 
 

______________________________ 
Susan B. Seward, Chair 

Sussex County Board of Supervisors 



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:  Public Hearing – Item #4.01 

Subject:  Resolution authorizing the preparation and submittal of an application by the County 
of Sussex for Community Improvement Grant (CIG) Funds through the Virginia Small 
Cities Community Development Block Grant Program 

Board Meeting Date:   March 16, 2017 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  The County of Sussex has identified the revitalization of the Pocahontas Neighborhood in 
the Town of Wakefield as its top priority based on the 2013 County-wide Housing Conditions 
Assessment that delineated the extent of the deteriorated and dilapidated housing conditions in the 
area.  The County applied for and received a CDBG Planning Grant from the Virginia Department of 
Housing and Community Development (VDHCD) in FY 2015 to undertake a neighborhood revitalization 
study to identify needs, develop a proposed improvement program and budget, identify additional 
funding resources to implement said program, and submit a 2017 CDBG Community Improvement Grant 
application.     

Sussex County is eligible for and wishes to submit a 2017 CDBG Community Improvement Grant 
application for the Pocahontas Neighborhood Improvement Project for a total of $1,199,953 to VDHCD 
by March 29, 2017. The County of Sussex has or will secure commitments of private and public 
investments of: 1) $13,000 in improvements to the sanitary sewer and fire hydrants in the neighborhood 
by the Sussex Service Authority; 2) $13,000 in new or replacement street lights for the neighborhood; 3) 
$21,900 from VDOT for culvert cleanouts; 4) $9,500 in waived permit fees and other inspections by the 
County for a total non-CDBG investment of $57,400.  

 The purpose of the hearing is to solicit public input on the proposed Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) application of the County of Sussex to be submitted to the Virginia 
Department of Housing and Community Development on March 29, 2017, under their 
Community Improvement Grant (CIG) category. 

Michael Dobson with Community Planning Partners will be in attendance at the public hearing 
to elaborate further on the Community Development Block Grant application for the 
Pocahontas Neighborhood in the Town of Wakefield.   

Attachments (if any):  Resolution for the Board’s approval, Summary of Activities, Proposed 
Budget, a copy of Notice of Public Hearing 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:  Staff requests the Board of Supervisors approval of the resolution authorizing the 
preparation and filing of an application by Sussex County for Community Improvement Grant 
(CIG) funds through the Virginia Small Cities Community Development Block Grant Program. 

Public Hearing - Page 1

sricks
Highlight



MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________  

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Public Hearing - Page 2



RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING THE PREPARATION AND FILING OF AN APPLICATION 
FOR COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT GRANT FUNDS THROUGH  
THE VIRGINIA SMALL CITIES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  

BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM  

WHEREAS, the County of Sussex has previously participated in the Small Cities 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program as administered by the Virginia 
Department of Housing Community Development (VDHCD) in order to address the 
County’s priority community development needs; and  

WHEREAS, the County of Sussex has identified the revitalization of the 
Pocahontas Neighborhood in the Town of Wakefield as its top priority based on the 2013 
Countywide Housing Conditions Assessment that delineated the extent of the deteriorated 
and dilapidated housing conditions in the area; and  

WHEREAS, the County applied for and received a CDBG Planning Grant from 
VDHCD in FY 2015 to undertake a neighborhood revitalization study to identify needs, 
develop a proposed improvement program and budget, identify additional funding 
resources to implement said program, and submit a 2017 CDBG Community 
Improvement Grant application; and  

WHEREAS, the County conducted public and stakeholder meetings; formed a 
Project Management Team that met on a regular basis; completed a physical needs 
assessment of the targeted portion of the Pocahontas Neighborhood and surrounding 
properties; conducted a Housing Occupancy Survey of the owner-occupants and tenant-
occupants within the targeted portion of the Pocahontas Neighborhood; solicited and 
received Preliminary Applications for Housing Assistance from owner-occupants and 
tenant-occupants and Preliminary Landlord Participation Agreements within the final 
delineated project area; solicited and received agreements to demolish blighted properties 
within the final delineated project area; had completed a Preliminary Engineering Report 
and cost estimate for improvements to the water facilities, sanitary sewer facilities, storm 
drainage facilities, the road network, and associated curb, gutter, sidewalk, and streetlight 
improvements; and  

WHEREAS, said needs assessment and surveys identified deteriorating and 
dilapidated residential property that is feasible for rehabilitation as a significant problem 
in the targeted portion of the Pocahontas Neighborhood and further identified vacant 
dilapidated residential property infeasible for rehabilitation as a severe blight and 
blighting influence on the area and an ongoing threat to public health, safety, and welfare; 
and 

WHEREAS, there are three dilapidated trailers in severely dilapidated condition 
within the targeted portion of the Pocahontas Neighborhood that are uninhabited and are 
a severe blight on the area and are an ongoing threat to public health, safety, and welfare; 
and 

WHEREAS, an Pocahontas Neighborhood Improvement Program for physical 
improvements has been developed by the County in cooperation with property owners 

Public Hearing - Page 3



and related stakeholders pursuant to requirements for funding set forth by VDHCD 
including a report on the estimated housing rehabilitation costs within the final delineated 
project area; a preliminary Housing Rehabilitation Program Design; a Preliminary 
Engineering Report (PER) with cost estimates for improvements to water facilities, 
sanitary sewer facilities, storm drainage facilities, the road network, and associated curb, 
gutter, street, sidewalks, and streetlight improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed Housing Rehabilitation Program will provide one 
hundred percent (100%) direct benefit for fourteen (14) LMI owner-occupied housing 
units/households with thirty-one (31) persons and for five (5) LMI tenant-occupied 
housing units/households with nine (9) persons; the reconstruction of two (2) LMI owner-
occupied housing unit with two (2) person; the clearance of three (3) severely blighted 
vacant and unoccupied mobile homes and an indirect benefit for forty-one (41) housing 
units/households remaining after the planned demolitions within the final delineated 
project area by improving the health, safety, and welfare of neighborhood residents; and 
the planned infrastructure improvements will provide an indirect benefit for forty-one 
(41) housing units/households remaining after the planned demolitions within the final
delineated project area by improving the neighborhood living conditions; and

WHEREAS, the County of Sussex has or will secure commitments of private and 
public investments of: 1) $13,000 in improvements to the sanitary sewer and fire hydrants 
in the neighborhood by the Sussex Service Authority; 2) $13,000 in new or replacement 
street lights for the neighborhood; 3) $21,900 from VDOT for culvert cleanouts; 4) 
$9,500 in waived permit fees and other inspections by the County for a total non-CDBG 
investment of $57,400; and 

WHEREAS, the County is eligible for and wishes to submit a 2017 CDBG 
Community Improvement Grant application for the Pocahontas Neighborhood 
Improvement Project for a total of $1,199,953 to VDHCD by March 29, 2017; and  

WHEREAS, the County of Sussex properly advertised and conducted public 
hearings on February 21, 2017 and March 16, 2017 which addressed the CDBG program 
and the proposed CDBG project application, thereby meeting citizen participation 
requirements. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Sussex County Board of 
Supervisors that the County Administrator, the County’s chief administrative official, is 
hereby authorized to execute and file all appropriate documents for a Pocahontas 
Neighborhood Improvement Grant under the 2017 Virginia Community Development 
Block Grant Community Investment Grant application totaling $1,199,953 in CDBG 
funding and to provide such additional information as may be required by the Virginia 
Department of Housing and Community Development. 

A Copy Teste 

___________________________    ______________ 
Vandy V. Jones, III  Date of Adoption 
Interim County Administrator 

Public Hearing - Page 4



SUSSEX COUNTY PUBLIC HEARING 
THURSDAY, MARCH 16, 2017, 6:00 P.M. 

Summary of Activities 
Pocahontas Neighborhood Improvement Project 

Description of Area 

The targeted area of Pocahontas Neighborhood Improvement Project is centered around Town side of 
the neighborhood on the western boundary of the Town of Wakefield.  It includes King, Twilight, 
Higgins, and Knight Streets.    

The target area contains nineteen (19) residential units.  The size of the units range from single-story 
1920s and 1930s shotgun homes to more traditional two-story frame homes.  Most of the home were 
constructed in the mid-1970s along King and Twilight Streets.   Older homes line Higgins and Knight 
Street with the occasional mobile home mixed into these two streets. No homes were determined to be 
contributing to any historic district thus a Programmatic Agreement with the Virginia Department of 
Historic Resources was not deemed necessary.  

Three (3) residential properties in the project area have been deemed substantially damaged or 
destroyed and several structures already have been removed for public safety.  Two (2) homes will be 
reconstructed on their lots for the owners.  We do not anticipate any permanent relocation at this time. 
The project area will include the demolition and clearance of three (3) mobile homes.    

Housing Rehabilitation 

The County has both surveyed over 44 properties in the neighborhood using a door-to-door survey.  
The County solicited pre-grant interest surveys of the structures and identified the following units in 
need of rehabilitation: 

• Fourteen (14) low-to-moderate income (LMI) owner-occupied units (31 persons total).
• Five (5) low-to-moderate income (LMI) rental occupied units (9 person total)

 In total, pre-applications for rehabilitation assistance have been received for nineteen (19) properties 
totaling an estimated forty (40) LMI persons. Two (2) owner-occupied homes will be reconstructed at 
their cost estimates exceeded the housing rehabilitation limits.  Priority for rehabilitation assistance 
will be placed on those units currently owner-occupied by LMI residents. The Rehabilitation 
Specialist has completed the inspections of properties.  Any additional interested and eligible residents 
of the target area will be considered for rehabilitation assistance subject to budgetary allowances.   

Forty-four (44) housing units within the project area were inspected by Dennis LeBlanc, a certified 
Rehab Specialist, to determine the feasibility and preliminary cost of rehabilitation. These units 
included both occupied and vacant residential units with owners or investor-owners that had expressed 
interest in receiving rehabilitation assistance.  

Acquisition and Demolition 

Public Hearing - Page 5



The Rehabilitation Specialist also identified and inspected three (3) vacant units in the neighborhood. 
The project budget is set to include the demolition of all three homes using CDBG funds.  No 
acquisition or demolition activities will take place without the express, voluntary consent of both 
existing residents and property owners.  

Infrastructure Improvements 

Summit Engineering consulted with the Public Works Department and existing residents, resulting in 
the Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) to address these deficiencies.  

The PER identifies the following items to be addressed: 

1) Construction of a new connector road between Twilight and King Street
2) Replacement of 1500 LF of water lines on Higgins Street and the connections to all home
3) Installation of 450 LF of sidewalk
4) Sanitary Line Tests, Cleanout and Camera along Knight. Twilight and King Street
5) Culvert reconstruction and replacement on Higgins Street
6) Replacement of two (2) street lights and the installation of six (6) new street lights
7) Culvert and ditch cleanout
8) Patch pavement in the areas of pipe and curb repair areas
9)

The total cost of the repairs according the PER is estimated to be $355,378.  

Budget 

If approved by the Board of Supervisors, the County of Sussex will apply for a 2017 CDBG 
Community Investment Grant (CIG) in the amount of $1,199,153 for the Pocahontas Neighborhood 
Improvement Project.  The County will invest $9,500 in financial and in-kind match in the project over 
2 years including General Fund dollars, mainly cleanup costs by inmates and the value of waived 
building permit fees.  Additional non-County, non-CDBG funds will come from the Sussex Service 
Authority, VDOT, the Town of Wakefield and Dominion VA Power.  The total project cost is 
estimated to be $1,256,553. 

Public Hearing - Page 6



ADMINISTRATION
Execution of DHCD Contract 13,500$               -$  
Awarding Rehab Contracts 13,000$               -$  
Housing Rehab Completion 22,500$               -$  
Completion of Construction/Labor Compliance 10,000$               -$  
Achivement of Benefits 22,500$               
Other: Legal -$  1,000$  

Other: Advertising -$  500$  

Other: Workshop Expenses/Travel 1,000$  500$  

Other: Recording Fees/Title Searches 3,000$  -$  
Satisfactory Compliance Review/ Closeout 4,500$  -$  

Subtotal 90,000$              2,000$  

INTERIM ASSISTANCE
Other: Cuvlert Clean Up -$  2,500$  

Subtotal -$  2,500$  

DEMOLITION 
Vacant - Demoition (3 units) 12,000$              

Subtotal 12,000$              -$  

OWNER-OCCUPIED HOUSING REHABILITATION 641,625$            1,500$  
Owner-Occupied Construction 546,250$            -$  
Rehabilitation Specialist 54,625$               -$  
Temporary Relocation 36,000$               -$  
HMEP 4,750$                 -$  
Other: Waived Permit Fees -$  3,800$  

Subtotal 641,625$            3,800$  

RENTAL REHABILITATION -$  -$  
Rental Rehab Construction -$  -$  
Rehabilitation Specialist -$  -$  
Temporary Relocation -$  -$  

COUNTY OF SUSSEX
POCAHONTAS IMPROVEMENT GRANT PROPOSED BUDGET

CIG # 17-xx

 BUDGET LINE ITEM CDBG Non-CDBG

Public Hearing - Page 7



HMEP -$                     -$                           
Other: Waived Permit Fees -$                     -$                           

Subtotal -$                   -$                         

OWNER-OCCUPIED SUBSTANTIAL RECONSTRUCTION 158,500$            -$                         
Owner-Occupied Reconstruction 140,000$            -$                           
Rehabilitation Specialist 14,000$               -$                           
Temporary Relocation 4,000$                 -$                           
HMEP 500$                    -$                           
Other: Waived Permit Fees -$                     1,050$                       

Subtotal 158,500$            1,050$                     

WATER SERVICE IMPROVEMENTS
Waterline Improvments/Hyrdant Work 90,550$               1,500$                       
Other: Engineering -$                     500$                          
Other: Inspections -$                     500$                          

Subtotal 90,550$              500$                          

SANTIARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS
Topo Survey/Camera/Smoke Tests/Clean/Outreach -$                     10,000$                     
Other: Engineering -$                     650$                          
Other: Inspections -$                     500$                          

Subtotal -$                     11,150$                    

STREETS (CONNECTOR ROAD)/DITCHES/CULVERTS
Streets/Culverts/Connector Road 172,878$            21,900$                     
Other: Engineering 20,100$               -$                           
Other: Inspections 12,000$               -$                           

Subtotal 204,978$            21,900$                   

STREETLIGHTS
Streetlights/Power Pole Repairs -$                   13,000$                     
Other: Engineering -$                     -$                           
Other: Inspections -$                     500$                          

Subtotal -$                   13,500$                   

SIDEWALKS
Sidewalk 12,500$              500$                          
Other: Engineering 1,000$                 -$                           
Other: Inspections -$                     500$                          

Public Hearing - Page 8



Subtotal 13,500$              1,000$                     

SUBTOTAL INFASTRUCTURE 309,028$            48,050$                   

TOTAL 1,199,153$         57,400$                   

Public Hearing - Page 9



Notice of Public Hearing 
County of Sussex, Virginia 

The County of Sussex will conduct a public hearing on Thursday, March 
16, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the Sussex General District Courtroom – Sussex 
Judicial Center, located at 15098 Courthouse Road in Sussex, Virginia.  
The purpose of the hearing is to solicit public input on the proposed 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) application of the County 
of Sussex for the Pocahontas Neighborhood Improvement Project to be 
submitted to the Virginia Department of Housing and Community 
Development on March 29, 2017, under their Community Investment 
Grant (CIG) competitive grants category.  Property owners and others 
interested in this project are encouraged to attend.   

The draft CDBG proposal will be presented for comment along with 
information on the proposed improvement activities that will serve to 
benefit low-to-moderate income persons in the project area.  Information 
on projected beneficiaries, including the number of low- and moderate-
income residents to benefit from the proposed project and a fact sheet on 
the proposal which includes the proposed project budget will be provided. 
Additional Information regarding the proposed project can be obtained by 
contacting Ms. Brenda Drew, Sussex Housing Department, 233-L South 
County Drive, Waverly, VA 23890 or Mr. Michael Dodson, Project 
Consultant, 2201 West Broad Street, Ste 204, Richmond VA  23220.   

Comments, complaints and grievances can be submitted in writing to 
Shilton Butts, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors, County of Sussex, 20135 
Princeton Road, PO Box 1397, Sussex, Virginia 23884 or by phone at 
(434) 246-1000 until 4 PM on Monday, March 16, 2017.

If you plan to attend and have any special needs requirements, please call 
the number listed above or dial 811.   

Public Hearing - Page 10



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Appointments #5.01 

Subject:   Sussex Service Authority Appointment Update 

Board Meeting Date:  March 16, 2017 

============================================================================== 
Summary:   At the February 16, 2017 Board meeting, staff was requested to obtain resumes for 
the two (2) candidates nominated for the At-Large Alternate position for the Sussex 
Service Authority Board of Directors.  Staff is pending receipt of resumes.  

Recommendation: N/A 

Attachments (if any):     N/A 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:   None 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

sricks
Highlight



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.01 

Subject:   Release of Liability for Damage and Utility Easement 

Board Meeting Date:  March 16, 2017 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  Mr. Jason Williams, Senior District Manager of Atlantic Waste Disposal, forwarded a Release 
of Liability for Damage Form and a Utility Easement to County Administration for Prince George Electric 
Cooperative.  Prince George Electric Cooperative is requesting a release of liability for damage. These 
are needed for work on the construction of the waste water treatment plant construction. The 
easement is for power to a tanker truck load out station. 

Recommendation: That the Board of Supervisors authorize staff to execute the Prince George 
Electric Cooperative Release of Liability for Damage and Utility Easement Agreement  

Attachments: Release of Liability Damage Form, Utility Easement Agreement and E-mail from 
Mr. Jason Williams 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:   That the Board of Supervisors authorizes staff to execute the Prince George Electric 
Cooperative Release of Liability for Damage  and Utility Easement Agreement 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 1

sricks
Highlight



Action Items - Page 2



Action Items - Page 3



Action Items - Page 4



Action Items - Page 5



Action Items - Page 6



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.02 

Subject:   Request for Budget Transfer – Sheriff’s Department 

Board Meeting Date:  March 16, 2017 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  The Sheriff’s Department is requesting a budget transfer from Selective Enforcement 
salaries and wages into the SPOT salaries and wages line item in the amount of $25,000.00.  The 
transfer is to cover ongoing operations that will require payment. 

Recommendation: That the Board of Supervisors authorizes the transfer from Selective 
Enforcement salaries and wages into the SPOT salaries and wages line item in the amount of 
$25,000.00 to cover ongoing operations that will require payment. 

Attachments:     A copy of letter from the Sheriff’s Department, dated February 14, 2017 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:    

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 7

sricks
Highlight



Action Items - Page 8



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.03 

Subject:   Holiday Leave Balances (Sheriff’s Department) 

Board Meeting Date:  March 16, 2017 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  A request was received from Sheriff Raymond Bell in regards to the holiday leave 
balances his staff has accrued and was unable to use as of December 31, 2016.  He is requesting 
that the employees of the Sheriff’s Department be awarded a three month extension to use those 
holiday hours accrued in November and December or to be paid out for those unused holiday 
hours during those months.   

Currently, holiday hours accrued in December are available throughout the next year for 
employees to use.   

Recommendation: That the Board of Supervisors would allow holiday hours accrued in both 
November and December to be available throughout the next year for employees to use into 
2017, but also making this a permanent change to the Sussex County Personnel Policy and 
Procedures Manual. 

Attachments (if any):     Holiday Leave Request – Dated January 6, 2017 

============================================================================== 
ACTION:   That the Board of Supervisors would allow holiday hours accrued in both November 
and December to be available throughout the next year for employees to use into 2017, but also 
making this a permanent change to the Sussex County Personnel Policy and Procedures Manual. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 9

sricks
Highlight



Action Items - Page 10



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Item #6.04 

Subject:   Adoption of Vision, Mission and Strategic Initiatives Statements 

Board Meeting Date:  March 16, 2017 

============================================================================== 
Summary: The Board of Supervisors engaged Dr. Michael Chandler, a nationally recognized planning 
expert, to facilitate a process that began with  a pre-retreat Board  survey administered in September, 
followed by a two-day Board retreat in October at the Wakefield 4-H Center, a November Board work 
session and a final December Board work session.  

At its December Board meeting, the adopted a working draft of the Sussex County Vision 
Statement, Mission Statement, Core Values Tagline, and Strategic Initiatives/Action Agenda 2017-2020.  
Staff was tasked with advertising the items on the County’s website to seek public comments for review 
until March 1, 2017.  Administration has not received any comments. 

Recommendation: The Board of Supervisors adopts the Vision Statement, Mission Statement, Core 
Values Tagline, and Strategic Initiatives/Action Agenda 2017-2020. 

Attachments:     A copy of the Sussex County Vision Statement, Mission Statement, Core Values 
Tagline, and Strategic Initiatives/Action Agenda 2017-2020 

============================================================================== 

ACTION:   That the Board of Supervisors adopts the Vision Statement, Mission Statement, Core Values 
Tagline, and Strategic Initiatives/Action Agenda 2017-2020. 

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

Action Items - Page 11

sricks
Highlight

sricks
Highlight



Sussex County Vision Statement 

Sussex County is a community dedicated to making strategic choices and decisions which 
provide citizens and businesses alike with a diversified economy, quality public services and a 
superior quality of life while sustaining the county’s natural environment and rural heritage for 
future generations. 

Sussex County Mission Statement 

It is the mission of the Sussex County Board of Supervisors in partnership with the local 
government staff to establish the range of public policies and to secure and allocate the fiscal and 
physical resources needed to address the public safety, educational and community development 
needs of county citizens and county businesses in a fiscally prudent and responsible manner. 

Sussex County Core Values 

Transparent       Mutual Respect 
Teamwork          Integrity 

Accountable 

Sussex County Tagline 

Sussex County….Rooted in the past Growing for the Future 

and 

Where Good Things are Happening 

Sussex County Strategic Initiatives/Action Agenda 2017-2020 

Strategic Initiative One: Expand Economic Opportunity 
Strategic Initiative Two: Practice Good Governance 
Strategic Initiative Three: Strengthen Community Partnerships 
Strategic Initiative Four: Fund the Future 

Action Items - Page 12



PRIOTIZED ACTIONS 
2017-2019 Sussex County Action Agenda 

2017 SUSSEX COUNTY ACTION AGENDA 

1. Expand wireless technology (broadband) across the county.
2. Develop a strategy for bringing online a state of the art business/industrial park in

Sussex County.
3. Develop a MOU with the Sussex County School Board outlining the Board of

Supervisor’s fiscal commitment (formula) in support of public education in the county.
4. Develop an agreement with each agency, department and service provider who

receives county funding that a year-end report detailing how the county funds were
spent and the impact the spending generated will be prepared and shared with the
BoS.

5. Place the adopted Sussex County vision-mission-strategic initiatives summary on the
county’s website and appropriate letterhead.

6. Draft and adopt a fiscal policy statement for Sussex County.
7. Develop an employee staffing plan (full-time and part-time) that will allow the county

to meet its fiscal and public service objectives.
8. Develop and adopt a Code of Performance statement that demonstrates the Board’s

commitment to witnessing the values and practices inherent with good governance.
9. Require all county funded departments and service providers, inclusive of

constitutional officers and the county school system, to identify cost saving measures.
The target threshold is 5%.

10. Develop a 5 year revenue and expenditure forecast focused on programs and services
sponsored by Sussex County inclusive of personnel costs, support costs and capital
costs.

2018 SUSSEX COUNTY ACTION AGENDA 

1. Inventory and liquidate unused county assets to gain revenue and reduce county
costs.

2. Interact with the incorporated towns located in the county on an annual basis to
discuss matters of mutual interest as well as foster a spirit of cooperation.

3. Add a capital maintenance component to the county’s CIP inclusive of life cycle costs.
4. Identify the range of revenue options the county can use to finance local government

programs and services.
5. Explore options for delivering county services in collaboration with another locality, the

private sector or the non-profit sector.
6. Conduct an office space inventory/needs study to determine the optimum physical

space county staff need to perform their duties efficiently and effectively.
7. Commit leverage revenue generated by Atlantic Waste to reduce county costs.

2019 SUSSEX COUNTY ACTION AGENDA 

1. Support local businesses and entrepreneurs by establishing a focused business
appreciation and expansion program.

Action Items - Page 13



2. Create a business recognition program to honor/celebrate business tenure in the
county.

3. Sponsor a business forum focused on securing community input regarding the types
of business and commercial enterprises Sussex County needs to attract.

4. Sponsor a business appreciation day/week by way of a BoS resolution.
5. Encourage greater citizen involvement in county government by sponsoring periodic

listening sessions throughout the county, by sponsoring periodic community surveys
and by sponsoring educational initiatives such as a Local Government Academy
and/or a Citizen’s Planning Academy.

6. Develop fact sheets for major policy issues and community projects and share with
the media as well as county citizens.

7. Sponsor an annual county boards and commissions appreciation dinner.
8. Sponsor a community forum to gain citizen input and ideas regarding the county’s

annual budget process.

Action Items - Page 14



Atlantic Waste 
Disposal 

March 16, 2017 

Monthly Report 

DR Report - Page 1

7.01

sricks
Highlight



AGENDA ITEM #7.01 
Reports of Departments/Agencies 
Atlantic Waste Disposal Update 

Mr. Jason Williams, Senior District Manager (Atlantic Waste Disposal), will give a monthly 
update on Atlantic Waste Disposal at the Board meeting.  

DR Report - Page 2



County Administrator’s 
Reports

Budget and CIP 
Presentation 

March16, 2017
DR Report - Page 3

7.02

sricks
Highlight



BOARD ACTION FORM 

Agenda Item:   Action Item #7.02 

Subject:   Budget and CIP Presentation 

Board Meeting Date:  March 16, 2017 

============================================================================== 
Summary:  Interim County Administrator Jones will review and provide a presentation of the 
budget for FY18 and the CIP at the Board meeting.  Copies of the budget and CIP will be provided 
at that time. 

Recommendation:  N/A 

Attachments (if any):  

============================================================================== 

ACTION:    

MOTION BY:   ___________ SECONDED BY:  ____________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Member Aye Nay Member Aye Nay 

Blowe ___ ___ Seward ___ ___ 

Fly ___ ___ Stringfield ___ ___ 

Futrell ___ ___ Tyler ___ ___ 

DR Report - Page 4

sricks
Highlight



Animal Services – 
Public Safety 

February 2017 

MonthlyReport 

DR Report - Page 5

7.03

sricks
Highlight



-

Carryover Stray Surrender Bite Rescued Adopted Returned Euthanized Escaped ied @ Poun Seizure orn @ Poun Foster
Avian 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Bovine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Canine 19 10 0 0 7 3 4 1 0 0 0 0 2
Ovine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Equine 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Feline 8 0 0 0 1 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

ACTIVE CASES CANINE 14      FELINE 1   EQUINE 0 Bovine 0 Ovine 0

CALLS: 19 Disptach   
CALLS: 15 In-House
TOTALS 34 Calls Note:  30 - 17022201 "Riot" canine euthanized for broken neck
MILEAGE

UNIT 5 1,689 Diesel
UNIT 6 1,798.00 Gas
UNIT 7 570.00 Gas
TOTALS 4,057.00

SUMMONS 0

Sussex County Animal Control
Monthly Intake Report

February
2017

0

5

10

15

20

25

Chart Title

Avian Bovine Canine Ovine Equine Feline

DR Report - Page 6



Canines/Felines Rescued or Transferred

Feb-17

          Total of  7  Canines

 Total of  1  Felines

Intake Number Name Rescue Orginazation/Animal Shelter

137 - 16060201 Harley AARF, PO Box 15262, Richmond, VA 23227

245 - 16120101 Salt Richmond SPCA, 2519 Hermitage Road, Richmond, VA 23220

13 - 17012301 Smokey Richmond SPCA, 2519 Hermitage Road, Richmond, VA 23220

17 - 17012305 Scooter Richmond SPCA, 2519 Hermitage Road, Richmond, VA 23220

20 - 17012601 Kooter Richmond SPCA, 2519 Hermitage Road, Richmond, VA 23220

21 - 17012602 Daisey Duke Richmond SPCA, 2519 Hermitage Road, Richmond, VA 23220

26 - 17020701 Breeze AARF, PO Box 15262, Richmond, VA 23227

51 - 16102101 Big Boy St. Francis Humane Assoc., 3620 Luckylee Crescent, Richmond, VA 23234

DR Report - Page 7



Month:    February 2017

Date Admin Patrol Complaints Welfare Rabies/Lic Phone Calls Invest Follow up Summons After Duty Training Rabies Equip/Shelter Vet Landfill Court Kennel Canine Shelter

Check Check In/Out visit Cases Clinic Maint. Inspect. Shots Related

1 1 6 4 2 3
2 3.5 2 1.5 1.5 2.5
3 3 2 1 1 1.5 1
4 3.5
5
6 1 7 4 2 1 1
7 2.5 5 5.5 1 0.5 0.5 1
8 2 4 2
9 0.5 3 3 2

10 2 6 4 1 0.5 2 2.5 0.5
11
12
13 1 7 4 1 3 2 1
14 8.5 3 1.5 0.5 1 2
15 2 5.5 1.5 1 6
16 6.5 2.5 1 2 1 3
17 3 4.5 3.5 1 1 1 2
18
19
20 0.5
21 1 6 4 1 1 3
22 7 6 1 1.5 1.5 0.5
23 5.5 6.5 1 1 0.5 2
24 1 4 2 0.5 2 6.5
25
26
27 6.5 4.5 1 0.5 0.5 0.5 3
28 1 6.5 4.5 1 0.5 2 0.5
29
30
31

Total 19 102 69.5 7.5 5 5 0 13 0 11.5 4.5 0 3.5 4.5 0 2 5.5 0 37

Admin will include: Paperwork, County Admin Office, Treasurers Office Training will include Monthly Meetings DR Report - Page 8



DR Report - Page 9

7.04

sricks
Highlight



DR Report - Page 10



DR Report - Page 11



DR Report - Page 12



DR Report - Page 13



DR Report - Page 14



DR Report - Page 15



DR Report - Page 16



DR Report - Page 17



DR Report - Page 18



DR Report - Page 19



DR Report - Page 20



DR Report - Page 21



DR Report - Page 22



DR Report - Page 23



DR Report - Page 24



DR Report - Page 25



DR Report - Page 26



DR Report - Page 27



DR Report - Page 28



DR Report - Page 29



DR Report - Page 30



Sussex County Housing Department 

“Promoting safe, sanitary, decent and affordable housing” 

Date:  March 6, 2017 

By: Brenda H. Drew, Housing Programs Coordinator 

DR Report - Page 31

7.05

sricks
Highlight



Sussex County Housing Department 

   

 

 2  

 

1) Interviewing Candidates for Housing Position(s)  

2) Pocahontas Planning Grant Activities 

 

During the month of February the housing staff and Mrs. 

Verna Hill, Community Sparkplug led an intensive outreach 

campaign.  The Purpose was to provide information and to 

assist in conducting and completing the housing 

assessments required by the Department of Housing and 

Community Development (DHCD) to complete the 

application submission to receive Community Improvement 

Grant (CIG) funding for the County’s Pocahontas 

neighborhood in the Town of Wakefield.  The outreach was 

conducted consecutively on Friday afternoons and on 

Saturdays, February 11th, 18th and 25th.    

This application proposes to provide housing improvements 

and elimination of blight.   The following are examples of 

some of the conditions noted. 

 

 

  

 

 

Activities in process: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Overview 
   

This monthly report 

provides an opportunity 

to express thanks for the 

current and future 

accomplishments, 

activities, benefits, and 

revenues furthered by 

the sincere and untiring 

efforts of Sussex County 

Department of Housing 

Programs.  

As always, the report 

includes a summary of 

the programs, and 

outcomes, administered 

by the Housing 

Department and 

supervised by Mrs. 

Brenda Drew, Director 

and Housing Coordinator 

since 1993.   The current 

staff consists of one full 

time employee and 

three volunteers.  The 

Department has 

successfully assisted LMI 

residents of Sussex 

County with various 

housing needs and 

community 

development projects 

for many years.   

Thank you for your 

continued cooperation 

and support. 

 

 

DR Report - Page 32



Sussex County Housing Department 

   

 

 3  

 

Kerosene heaters have the potential as a fire hazard.   In 

addition, these unvented heaters produces several gases 

that can cause difficulty breathing, due to the fact that the 

fumes from the heater are not removed by a chimney, 

releasing gases into the room.   This is especially 

dangerous to our senior citizens and people with asthma 

and children.  Most dangerous is carbon monoxide, which 

is poisonous.   

 The proposed CIG project plans to make  

needed Investments in the Pocahontas  

Community by making improvements to the  

housing stock and blight elimination. 

 The proposed CIG project will provide  

Home Maintenance Education classes  

for all participants to address various  

housing issues.  

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3) Program Income Tracking  

4) Tornado Recovery UNOS Project Application  

5) Housing Rehab Applications review 

6) Housing Oversight/Management Team Meetings 

7)  On-going Training for 3 Volunteers during the month of February includes: 

a) Housing Quality Standard (HQS) Inspections are required and conducted for all housing 

programs administered by this department.  HQS Inspections are conducted for citizens 

in need of rehabilitation services and for Landlords and tenants participating in the 

Rental Assistance Program.  Additional training provided by Virginia Housing 

Development Authority (VHDA)/Nan McKay is forthcoming. 

DR Report - Page 33



Sussex County Housing Department 

   

 

 4  

 

Providing a platform for public servants that ensure 

consistent and timely communication with 

applicants, residents, private sector landlords, co-

workers, government officials, various housing 

professionals and community leaders. 

b) Financial Tracking of Housing Rehabilitation Program Income and Loan Servicing.  

Posting monthly clients’ payments; monitoring delinquent accounts and generating 

annual statements.   

c) Basic Computer Skills and Microsoft Office Programs training. 

d) Record keeping and filing protocol 

 

8) Monthly Celebrations/ Lunch and Learn Time 

 

1  February Monthly Celebration 

 

DR Report - Page 34



Sussex County Housing Department 

   

 

 5  

 

HCV Fees Report 

DR Report - Page 35


	#1 March 16 2017 agenda
	#2.1 26 2017 Minutes
	#2.2 Warrants and Vouchers
	MARCH 2017.pdf
	MAR 16 2017


	#2.3 Consent Agenda 3.16.17 RRS Foodservice
	#2.4 Consent Agenda 3.16.17 VACORP
	#3.1 Cover Sheet
	#3.2 RESOLUTION SCHS Varsity Football Team
	RESOLUTION
	SUSSEX CENTRAL HIGH SCHOOL
	VARSITY FOOTBALL TEAM

	#4 Public Hearing
	#4.01 PUBLIC HEARING  ACTION FORM -  Pocahontas CIG -2017
	#4.01-1 POC Resolution Final (003)
	#4.01-2 Public Hearing 2 Hand-Out SSX (003)
	#4.01-3 Copy of POC Budget
	COUNTY BUDGET

	#4.01-4 2nd PUBLIC Hearing Notice County Ad - Poca

	#5.01 SSA Appointment
	#6 Action Items
	#6.01 AW Release of Liability
	#6.01-1 PG Release of Liability and Utility Easement_WWTP_03062017 (002)
	#6.01-2 Proposed Utility Easement
	#6.01-3 Email
	#6.02 Budget Transfer
	#6.02-1 Budget Transfer Letter
	#6.03 Sheriff Holiday Hours
	#6.03-1 Holiday Leave Request Letter
	#6.04 Mission-Vision-Strategic
	#6.04-1 FINAL COPY Sussex County 2016 Vision Statement  with prioritized actions

	#7 Departmental Reports
	#7.01 3 16 2017 Atlantic Waste Disposal
	#7.02 Cover
	#7.08

	#7.02-1 Budget and CIP
	#7.03 ACPS Cover Sheet
	#7.03-1 Copy of End of Month Reports
	Feb 2017

	#7.03-2 Copy of Feb Rescues 2017
	#7.03-3 Copy of Feb 2017 Officer Log Hours Report
	February 2017

	#7.04 Treasurers Report - February2017 Board Report
	BOARD1.pdf
	BOARD2.pdf
	BOARD3.pdf
	BOARD4.pdf
	BOARD5.pdf
	BOARD6.pdf

	#7.05 Housing Report FEB2017 (Autosaved) (003)




